NWEE

;Z Oadby & Wigston Law & Democracy

ﬁ;«é}%\BQRQUGH COUNCIL Democratic Services

o

NG A
ER TOGM

TO COUNCILLOR:

L A Bentley (Chair) Miss P V Joshi R E R Morris

G A Boulter J Kaufman Dr I K Ridley
Mrs L M Broadley (Vice-Chair) Ms C D Kozlowski
F S Broadley Mrs H E Loydall

I summon you to attend the following meeting for the transaction of the business in the agenda below.

Meeting: Development Control Committee

Date and Time: Thursday, 20 October 2022, 7.00 pm

Venue: Council Offices, Bushloe House, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR
Contact: Democratic Services

t: (0116) 257 2775
e: democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Yours faithfully

Council Offices %a &_—‘,C“cv-/q .

Wigston
12 October 2022

Mrs Anne E Court
Chief Executive Meeting ID: 2264

@ It has cost £3.28 to print, package and post this single agenda pack for this meeting.
A full cost breakdown for all agenda packs for this meeting is provided further down..

ITEM NO. AGENDA PAGE NO'S

Live Stream of Meeting | Instructions

This meeting will be live streamed.

Press & Public Access:

YouTube Live Stream

A direct link to the live stream of the meeting's proceedings on the Council's
YouTube Channel is below.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=i{2T MetVOKps

Postal Address: Coundil Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 2DR

w
e % CSE Refuse & Recyding Centre: The Depot, Wigston Road, Oadby, Leicestershire LE2 5JE
553 Tel: (0116)2888961 Fax: (0116) 2887828 Email: csc@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
m;m ARMED FORCES
=V ARWEL FURWES
B“m‘ﬁ @ COVENANT oadby-wigston.gov.uk o OadbyWigstonBC o @0Oadby_Wigston

~Page 1~


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=j2TMetVQKps

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence from Members to determine the quorum of the
meeting in accordance with Rule 7 of Part 4 of the Constitution.

2. Appointment of Substitutes

To appoint substitute Members in accordance with Rule 26 of Part 4 of the
Constitution and the Substitution Procedure Rules.

3. Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 4-6

To read, confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting in accordance
with Rule 19 of Part 4 of the Constitution.

5. The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land East of Bideford 7-16
Close, Wigston) Tree Preservation Order 2022

Report of the Arboricultural Officer
6. Report of the Development Control Manager (October 2022) 17 - 28

a. Application No. 22/00072/FUL - Land Adjacent To 23 Highcroft
Road, Oadby, Leicester, Leicestershire, LE2 4RS

Report of the Planning Policy & Development Control Manager

You can access all available public meeting documents
and audio-visual live streams and recordings electronically on:

=) il

Bl

< &
Tt
Q’No B
o oue

Our website oadby- Your smart iPad, Our YouTube Channel Our audio platform

wigston.gov.uk under Android or available at soundcloud.com/
'Your Council’ and Windows device bit.ly/3vji3FY or oadbywigstonbc or
‘Meeting Dates, with the intuitive smart device with the smart device with the

Agendas & Minutes’ ‘Modern.Gov’ app ‘YouTube’ app. ‘SoundCloud’ app

The cost breakdown for printing, packaging and posting the agenda pack for
this meeting (excluding any carbon footprint impact) is calculated as follows:

This agenda pack (1) All agenda packs (8)
Paper, ink and envelope
(A4 white, colour, C4 envelope) £1.54 £12.29
Postage £1.74 £13.92

(1st class, large)

Printed and published by Democratic Services,

Development Control Committee Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices,
Thursday, 20 October 2022, 7.00 pm Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

~ Page 2 ~


https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/moderngov/9pfpjqcvz8nl
https://bit.ly/3vji3FY
https://apps.apple.com/us/app/youtube-watch-listen-stream/id544007664
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8

Officer time

(Pro rata hourly rate) n/a £5.16

Total cost(s) £3.28 £31.37

Please contact Democratic Services to discuss the more cost-effective and environmentally-friendly
options available for receiving this agenda pack, including any IT and/or training requirements.

Printed and published by Democratic Services,

Development Control Committee Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices,
Thursday, 20 October 2022, 7.00 pm Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

~ Page 3 ~



Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE HELD AT/BY
COUNCIL OFFICES, BUSHLOE HOUSE, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON, LEICESTERSHIRE
LE18 2DR ON THURSDAY, 28 JULY 2022 COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM

PRESENT E E
L A Bentley Chair ‘
Mrs L M Broadley Vice-Chair 2
COUNCILLORS (=] )

Meeting ID: 2238
F S Broadley

Ms C D Kozlowski
Mrs H E Loydall
R E R Morris

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

T Carey Principal Development Control Officer

J Carr Planning Policy and Development Manager

J Cosgrove Interim Planning Officer

D M Gill Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer
A Hunt Democratic & Electoral Services Officer

A Thorpe Head of Built Environment

9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillors G A Boulter, Miss P V Joshi, J
Kaufman and Dr I K Ridley.

10. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES

None.

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

12. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
By affirmation of the meeting, it was
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 May 2022 be taken as read,
confirmed and signed.

13. REPORT OF THE PLANNING POLICY AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGER (JULY 2022)

Development Control Committee Chair / Vice-

Thursday, 28 July 2022, 7.00 pm Chair’s Initials
~Page 4 ~



14. APPLICATION NO. 21/00485/FUL - LAND SOUTH, NEWTON LANE, WIGSTON,
LEICESTERSHIRE

The Committee gave consideration of the report (as set out on pages 8 — 23 of the agenda
reports pack), which asked it to determine an application for the relocation of a pumping
station and the provision of an additional 38 dwellings.

Ms Helen Bareford addressed the Committee in support of the application on behalf of the
applicant.

The Head of Law and Democracy assured the Chair that there will be no direct traffic
access from this application onto Cooks Lane.

It was moved by the Chair, seconded by the Vice Chair and

RESOLVED THAT:

The application be GRANTED planning permission in accordance with the
submitted documents and plans subject to the prescribed conditions and
informatives.
Votes For:

Votes Against:
Abstentions:

(=0 )

15. APPLICATION NO. 22/00112/FUL - 52 THIRLMERE ROAD, WIGSTON,
LEICESTERSHIRE, LE18 3RR

The Committee gave consideration of the report (as set out on pages 24 — 30 of the
agenda reports pack), which asked it to determine an application for the proposed single
storey front and rear extension, two storey side extension and garage to room
conversation and alteration.

It was moved by the Chair, seconded by Councillor Mrs H E Loydall and
RESOLVED THAT:

The application be GRANTED planning permission in accordance with the
submitted documents and plans subject to the prescribed conditions and
informatives.
Votes For:

Votes Against:
Abstentions:

= =D

16. APPLICATION NO. 22/00147/REM - 21 WILLOW PARK DRIVE, WIGSTON,

Development Control Committee Chair / Vice-

Thursday, 28 July 2022, 7.00 pm Chair’s Initials
~Page 5~



LEICESTERSHIRE, LE18 1EB

The Committee gave consideration of the report (as set out on pages 31 — 39 of the
agenda reports pack), which asked it to determine an application for the erection of 1
Detached Dwelling and Detached Double Garage.

It was moved by the Vice Chair, seconded by Councillor Ms C D Kozlowski and
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The application be GRANTED planning permission in accordance with the

submitted documents and plans subject to the prescribed conditions and
informatives.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 8.21 pm

&5

Chair / Vice-Chair

Thursday, 20 October 2022

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council
Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

Development Control Committee Chair / Vice-

Thursday, 28 July 2022, 7.00 pm Chair’s Initials
~ Page 6 ~



Agenda Item 5

Development Control
Committee

Thursday, 20 October
2022

Matter for Decision

Report Title:

Report Author(s):

The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land East of
Bideford Close, Wigston) Tree Preservation Order 2022

Michael Bennetto (Arboricultural Officer)

Purpose of Report:

The purpose of this report is to seek a decision from the Committee to
confirm the Tree Preservation Order which was made on the 28" April
2022 relating to land East of Bideford Close, Wigston.

Report Summary:

The assessment made by the Council justifies the making of the
relevant Tree Preservation Order.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that the Tree Preservation Order (Land
East of Bideford Close, Wigston) 2022 be confirmed without
modification.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Tracy Bingham (Strategic Director / Section 151 Officer)
(0116) 257 2845
tracy.bingham@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Adrian Thorpe (Head of The Built Environment)
(0116) 257 2645
adrian.thorpe@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Jamie Carr (Planning Policy and Development Manager)
(0116) 257 2652
jamie.carr@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Michael Bennetto (Arboricultural Officer)
(0116) 257 2697
michael.bennetto@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Not applicable

Vision and Values:

Accountability (V1)
Customer Focus (V5)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Financial:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Corporate Risk
Management:

No corporate risk(s) identified

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications arising from this report.
EA not applicable

Human Rights:

There are no implications arising from this report.

~Page 7 ~



mailto:tracy.bingham@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.thorpe@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:jamie.carr@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:michael.bennetto@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Health and Safety: There may be implications under Article 8 and Article 1 of the First

Protocol regarding the right of respect for a person’s private and
family life and home, and to the peaceful enjoyment of possessions.
However, these issues have been taken into account.

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service: As the author, the report is satisfactory.
Chief Finance Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory.
Monitoring Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory.
Consultees: None.

Background Papers:

e Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Tree Strategy
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Part VIII, Chapter I,
Trees.

e The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)(England)
Regulations 2012

e Planning Practice Guidance - Tree Preservation Orders and
trees in conservation areas

e TEMPO - Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders

¢ Human Rights Act 1998

e Protocol No. 1 to the European Convention on Human Rights

Appendices: 1. TPO-0354-GROUP (Prev exp.28.10.2022)

1. Information

1.1 The Order was created following the receipt of a pre-application enquiry for the
construction of 15 no. dwellings. The pre-application was received on 3 March 2022.

1.2 A site visit was carried out to assess the relevant land area. The trees are sited on an area
of land that is between the edge of a large residential development and a primary school.
The site is busy especially during school drop off and collection, but also with local
residents for dog walking and other recreational activities.

1.3 The area of land presents as Public Open Space. On closer inspection it is evident that the
land was never formally adopted by the Council and remains in private ownership.

1.4 A provisional Tree Preservation Order (TPO) was made and served on 28 April 2022. In
compliance with the regulation, copies of the Order were served on the land owner and
adjoining neighbours on 28" April 2022.

2. Representation

2.1 One letter of representation was received, in objection to the Order.

2.2 The owner of the land, (Land registry Title No. LT418634) Persimmon Homes (North
Midlands) Ltd. commissioned a report to carry out an assessment of the TPO focusing on
the suitability of the trees to be protected under TPO.

2.3 Points raised within the report include:

~ Page 8 ~



https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/files/documents/owbc_tree_strategy1/OWBC%20Tree%20Strategy%20-%20v.1.2.pdf
https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/files/documents/owbc_tree_strategy1/OWBC%20Tree%20Strategy%20-%20v.1.2.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/part/VIII/chapter/I
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/part/VIII/chapter/I
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/605/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/605/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-conservation-areas
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-conservation-areas
http://www.flac.uk.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/TEMPO-GN.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.echr.coe.int/Documents/Convention_ENG.pdf

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

(i) The Local Planning Authority (LPA) have failed to demonstrate how the protection of
trees within the TPO would provide any reasonable degree of public benefit.

(ii) The LPA have failed to demonstrate how the protection of trees within the TPO would
provide any reasonable degree of amenity.

(i) Using TEMPO evaluation, T2 & G1 both scores *11’, meaning that it ‘does not merit a
TPO'.

(iv) The LPA have failed to demonstrate how the groups overall impact and quality merits
protection.

(v) Itis concluded that both Tree T2 and Group G1 are unsatisfactory for inclusion within
this Tree Preservation Order. The main reasons for objection are set out in the table
below.

Tree Reason for Objection

Group G1 o The trees within G1 do not merit a TPO. When
applying the TEMPO methodology, the score was 11, and
‘does not merit a TPO’

. The local planning authority has provided no
details of how it has evaluated amenity in this case.

. The group contains a number of smaller trees
(with less with a shorter life-expectancy.

. The groups has less visibility due to its location

Tree T2 . Tree T2 does not merit a TPO. When applying
TEMPO methodology, the score was 11, and ‘does not
merit a TPO'.

. The local planning authority has provided no
details of how it has evaluated amenity in this case.

. The tree is a poorer specimen than T1 and is
located slightly more setback from Bideford Close.

Officer Comments

With regard to the TPO assessment and objection the following Officer comments are
relevant:

TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders) guidance is a systematised
assessment tool for TPO suitability. It should be acknowledged that the TEMPO assessment
is not the only tool used to assess TPQ's, other items such as those mentioned within
section 3.16 are also factors that may be taken into account.

While in general agreement with the TEMPO valuation scores attributed by the representor,
its noted that within the representor TEMPO valuation provided, section 1d is left blank.
However, within the TEMPO guidance it states that "Where none of the above apply, the
tree still scores one point”— therefore within the assessment put forward, this would
effectively increase the score for all trees and groups by one point which when applied to
the decision guide (Part 3) it yields ‘TPO defensible’ outcome for all features.

~Page 9 ~



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

The TEMPO methodology is designed as a *field guide” and is not designed to be
prescriptive, but merely to recommend a course of action.

In serving a TPO to tree owners and neighbours, there is no requirement to provide details
of how the trees amenity has been evaluated.

With regard to visibility, it is noted within the TEMPO guidance part C - Relative public
visibility:

"The first thing to note in this section is the prompt, which reminds the surveyor to consider
the 'realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use’. This is designed to address
the commonplace circumstance where trees that are currently difficult to see are located on
sites for future development, with this likely to result in enhanced visibility.”

Given the pre-application regarding development which would effectively include a changed
land use, the trees potential for continued growth and increased visibility is a material
consideration.

Visibility of the trees is not solely to local residents and should also take into account the
school pupils, staff and parents, for whom the trees offer many benefits.

The field maple, tree T2, while slightly more setback from the road is still clearly visible to
the public and provides ample room for it to age through to maturity and into senescence
with relatively minimal arboricultural intervention foreseen.

The area has long been described and declared as Public Open Space (POS), since the initial
application and permission in 1967.

Tree planting in the area was agreed upon by the Council and local residents and
conditioned for retention. The land has never formally been adopted by the Local Authority,
but this does not impact it status as POS.

Compared to the initial approved landscaping, a significant reduction in tree cover appears
to have occurred.

There has been no previous reason to suspect that the trees within this area of open space
would necessitate protection by a TPO, as since the very first applications involving this area
it has always been denoted as POS. Being in receipt of consultation on a pre-application to
effectively change the land use from POS to residential housing provides at the very least a
‘foreseeable’ threat to the treescape, arguably ‘immediate’.

Planning conditions are used, where appropriate, to secure the planting and establishment
of new trees. Tree planting provides for the future amenity of a site and its surroundings,
supplements existing tree cover or enhances areas where tree cover is sparse. A TPO may
be used to protect trees which are planted pursuant to such conditions.

Maintaining an area historically described as a POS to be a treed environment is inherently
for the public’s benefit to ensure that as a non-adopted area of designated open space (as
per previous planning applications), that this treed area remains a treed area and is
managed appropriately.

In terms of the use of the group classification, the value of a group of trees may be
collective only. As a collective, the group is greater than the sum of it's parts. Other factors,
such as importance as a wildlife habitat, natural capital and the wider benefits of trees
including response to climate change, may be taken into account but which alone would not
be sufficient to warrant a TPO.

~ Page 10 ~



4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Conclusions and recommendation

The Order has been made with the consideration of the potential land use change. The
degree of public benefit and degree of amenity are considered within the TEMPO valuation
score, which as considered within the report when carefully applied yields ‘TPO Defensible’.

The presence of a TPO does not necessarily preclude works or removal of trees, however it
ensures that the area is managed appropriately with regard to development control.

The trees are in a healthy condition, are considered to enhance the visual amenity of the
area, the creation of the TPO should allow the Local Authority to ensure that the treescape
in this publicly accessible open space is managed appropriately.

It is recommended that the Order be confirmed without modification.

~ Page 11 ~



Appendix 1

Town and Country Planning Act 1990

The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land East of Bideford Close, Wigston) Tree
Preservation Order 2022

The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by sections 198 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 hereby make the following Order:-

Citation

1. This Order may be cited as The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land East of Bideford Close,
Wigston) Tree Preservation Order 2022, reference TPO/0354/GROUP.

Interpretation

2. (1) In this Order “the authority” means the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston unless the context
otherwise requires.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so numbered in the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered regulation is a reference to the
regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations
2012.

Effect

3. (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is made.
(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation orders) or
subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners) and, subject to article
14, no person shall-
(a) cut down; top; lop; uproot; wilfully damage; or wilfully destroy; or
(b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, wilful damage or wilful destruction of, any
tree in the Schedule of this Order except with the written consent of the authority in
accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of State in accordance with
regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject to conditions, in accordance with those
conditions.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. 1In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “*C", being a tree to be
planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197 (planning permission to include
appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees), this Order takes effect as from the time when
the tree is planted.

Dated this ). day of D‘.pr'.\ 2022.

The Common Seal of the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston
was hereunto affixed in the presence of:-

{Mayor)
% 4
LU f/g
¢ '({W‘aw & Democracy)

oo ‘1\‘12..

~ Page 12 ~



CONFIRMATION OF ORDER

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development
Control Committee/under delegated powers* without modification on the  day of 20

Minute Reference:

Officer:

CONFIRMATION OF ORDER SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development
Control Committee/under delegated powers* on the day of 20 , subject
to the following modifications:

Minute Reference:

Officer:

DECISION NOT TO CONFIRM ORDER

A decision not to confirm this Order was taken by Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the
Development Control Committee/under delegated powers* on the day of 20

Minute Reference:

Officer:

~ Page 13 ~



DECISION TO VARY ORDER
A decision to vary this Order was taken by Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the
Development Control Committee/under delegated powers* on the day of 20

Minute Reference:

Officer:

DECISION TO REVOKE ORDER

A decision to revoke this Order was taken by Qadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the
Development Control Committee on the day of 20

Minute Reference:

* Delete as appropriate

~ Page 14 ~



SPECIFICATION OF TREES

SCHEDULE

Trees specified Individually

(encircled in black on the map)

Reference on map

Description

Situation

T1

Norway Maple (Acer platanoides)

Land east of Bideford Close

T2

Field Maple (Acer campestre)

Land east of Bideford Close

Trees specified by reference to an Area
(within a dotted black line on the map)

Reference on map Description Situation
Groups of Trees
(within a broken black line on the map)
Reference on map Description Situation
Gl 2no. Cherrry (Prunus sp.), Land east of Bideford Close
1no. Field Maple (Acer campestre),
4no. Norway Maple (Acer platanoides)
G2 1no. Lime (Tilia sp.), Land east of Bideford Close
1no. Silver Birch (Betula pendula),
3no. Crabapple (Malus sp.)
G3 2no. Lime (Tilia sp.), Land east of Bideford Close
2no. Norway Maple (Acer platanoides)
Woodlands

(within a continuous black line on the map)

Reference on map

Description

Situation

~ Page 15 ~







Agenda Item 6

Application Number Address
Report Items
a. 22/00072/FUL Land Adjacent To 23 Highcroft Road
Oadby
Leicester
Leicestershire
LE2 4RS

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 17 ~



a. 22/00072/FUL Land Adjacent to 23 Highcroft Road
Oadby

Leicester

Leicestershire

LE2 4RS

22 February 2022 Redevelopment Of Former Vacant Garden
Land With 1 no. Detached Dwelling Houses
with Off Road Parking And Garden (Re-
submission 21/00125/FUL)

Case Officer Jonathan Cosgrove

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293 Published 2021

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 18 ~




Site and Location

The application site is located on the north-west corner of Highcroft Road. It contains a parcel of
land that was formally in private amenity use and planted with fruit trees and a now demolished
asbestos cement outbuilding. The majority of the site has been cleared of vegetation, however,
there remains a parcel of rough woodland to the rear of the site which contains a known Badger
Sett. The area is residential in character with the street scene being characterised by single storey
dwellings constructed from brick. A modern housing estate of mainly two storey brick dwellings is
situated immediately to the north of the plot. The site is not within a Conservation Area and does
not contain or impact on the setting of any Listed Buildings. There are no other relevant Planning
Constraints.

Description of proposal

The application as originally submitted proposed the erection of 2 no. two-storey dwellings to the
front of the plot with associated amenity land to the rear. Following discussions with the applicant
the proposal was reduced in scale to propose the erection of a single two-storey dwelling to be
constructed from brick and featuring an integral garage. The proposed dwelling would measure c.
17.17 metres deep at its deepest point, 14.3 metres wide and would have a ridge height of c. 7.34
metres at its southern flank and c. 8.01 metres at its northern flank. The dwelling would be finished
in @ mix of brick and render with a concrete tile roof and uPVC fenestration.

The statutory determination period for this application expires on the 24 October 2022 and it is
intended to issue a decision as soon as practicably possible after the Committee meeting.

Relevant Planning History

21/00125/FUL: Redevelopment of former vacant garden land with 2 no. detached dwelling houses
with off road parking and garden amenity. — Withdrawn: 12 April 2021.

Consultations
Leicestershire County Council (Highways) — No objections subject to conditions requiring the closure

of any existing vehicular access, the provision of pedestrian and vehicular visibility splays, and
requiring the implementation of the proposed access and parking prior to occupation.

Leicestershire County Council (Ecology) — No Objections Subject to Conditions requiring a suitable
landscaping scheme and securing the mitigation measures detailed in the revised Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal.

The Leicestershire and Rutland Badger Group - have made observations objecting to the proposal
on the basis of the impact of the proposal on the badger sett.

Severn Trent Water Ltd— No Response.

National Grid - No Response.

Western Power Distribution — No Response.

OWBC Forward Plans — The proposal must conform to all of the relevant National and Local Planning
Policy and Guidance considerations. If the Case Officer considers that the proposal does conform to
all relevant policy and guidance, Planning Policy would have no further comments.

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 19 ~



OWBC Tree Officer — No significant arboricultural objection to the application subject to a condition
requiring a hard and soft landscaping plan being provided and agreed upon.

Representations

Neighbours have been informed and a notice placed with 8 letters of representation (from 8
properties) objecting to the proposal being received at the time of writing this report.

The date for the receipt of comments expired on the 30 May 2022.
The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: -

Loss of Amenity by way of overlooking and loss of privacy.
Loss of trees previously removed.

Loss of Amenity by way of noise.

Overdevelopment of the plot.

Established Hedge removed/incorrect northern boundary line.
Out of Character with surroundings.

Impact on Highway Safety.

Impact on Badgers.

Inappropriate removal of Asbestos from demolished garage.

X X X X X X X % ¥

Councillor Gamble has also made representations on the application. The Councillor's comments can
be summarised as follows: - Highcroft Road consists entirely of bungalows and an application to
build two two-storey properties would be totally out of character for the street scene. Councillor
Gamble has requested that the application be heard by the Development Control Committee should
the Officer’s recommendation be for approval.

Relevant Planning Policies

National Planning Policy Framework

Oadby and Wigston Local Plan

Policy 1 — Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy 6 — High Quality Design and Materials

Policy 11 — Housing Choices

Policy 15 — Urban Infill Development

Policy 34 — Car Parking

Policy 37 — Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Policy 44 — Landscape and Character

Supplementary Planning Document/Other Guidance

Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document (2019)
Leicestershire Highways Design Guide
Landscape Character Assessment (2018)

Planning Considerations

The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are as follows:

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 20 ~



The impact of the proposal on the street scene.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties.
The impact of the proposal on Trees and Ecology.

The Impact of the proposal on Highway Safety.

The impact of the proposal on the street scene

The application proposes the erection of an infill dwelling on former private amenity / garden land
within the built-up area of Oadby wherein Policy: 15 of the Local Plan applies. Policy 15 states that
‘Any proposal for development on residential garden land or any other open amenity space around
buildings will not be permitted unless it conforms to the guidance set out within the Council’s
Landscape Character Assessment.” The application site is located within the Oadby Later Estates
North and South Urban Character Area as defined by the Landscape Character Assessment where
the Urban Character Objective is to maintain and enhance the maturing suburban estate character
of the area.

While it is recognised that the proposed development would have a significant impact on the street
scene, by way of introducing a dwelling of a size and scale that would not follow the existing form
of development. It is noted that the street scene is characterised by a range of architectural styles
and that a modern two storey dwelling abuts the northern boundary of the street adjacent to the
site, and that the immediately adjacent dwelling no. 23 Highcroft Road, while single storey has an
unusual roof form with a ridge height of c. 6.6 metres.

Due to the stepped design of the roof form of the proposed dwelling and its relationship with the
adjacent dwelling no. 23 Highcroft Road, it is not considered that the erection of the proposed
dwelling would have sufficiently severe detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the
site or the wider area to justify the refusal of planning permission on design grounds, nor would it
result in significant harm to the suburban character of the area. Overall, it is considered that subject
to conditions requiring the approval of details of the materials used on the external surfaces of the
proposed dwelling, and removing permitted development rights for enlargements to the dwelling,
the development can be considered acceptable in design terms and, therefore, no objections are
raised with regard to the design elements of Policies: 6 and 44 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan
or the provisions of the Residential Development SPD.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties.

The proposed development would provide a good standard of amenity for any future occupants of
the proposed dwelling, and sufficient private amenity space would be provided to serve the needs of
their dwelling. While the proposed dwelling would be two-storey, it would respect the established
building line on Highcroft Road and while the proposed dwelling would be relatively large it would
not appear as an overbearing or overly dominant addition to the plot when viewed from
neighbouring properties.

While it is noted that an objection has been received from a neighbouring property citing loss of
amenity by way of overlooking it is noted that a separation distance of in excess of 27 metres would
be maintained between the front elevations of the dwellings and it is noted that the development
would not feature any windows at first floor level in its south facing flank elevation. Overall, it is
considered that the adverse amenity impacts of the proposed dwelling would not be sufficiently
severe to justify the refusal of planning permission on amenity grounds, however, in order to ensure
the protection of the amenity of neighbouring residents and any future occupants of the proposed
dwelling it is considered reasonable and necessary to impose a condition removing permitted
development rights from the proposed dwelling. Subject to the condition detailed above, no

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 21 ~



objections are raised with regard to the amenity elements of Policies: 6 and 44 of the Oadby and
Wigston Local Plan or the Provisions of the Residential Development SPD.

The impact of the Proposal on Trees and Ecology

While it is noted that a number of trees have been removed from within the plot and a historic
hedgerow forming the northern boundary of the site has also been removed and the loss of this
hedgerow is regrettable, it is recognised that the trees were located on private land and were not
subject to any statutory protection. Subject to a condition requiring the submission of a hard and
soft landscaping scheme to include the replanting of a hedge along the northern boundary of the
plot, the arboricultural impacts of the proposal can be considered acceptable. While it is noted that
a Badger Sett is present to the rear of the site and that an objection has been received from the
Leicestershire and Rutland Badger Group raising concerns regarding the impact of the proposal on
the Badgers, the applicant has submitted a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal in support of the
proposal. The County Ecologist has stated that the land is not suitable to support the Badger Sett in
the long term and that they have no objections to the proposal subject to the imposition of
conditions requiring a suitable landscaping scheme and the implementation of the mitigation
measures as detailed in the revised Preliminary Ecological Appraisal. Having regard to the above it is
not considered that the proposed development would have any unacceptable impacts on the habitat
of any protected species and overall, the proposal can be considered acceptable in ecological and
arboricultural terms and, therefore, no objections are raised with regard to the provisions of
Policies: 37 and 44 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

The Impact of the Proposal on Highway Safety

The application proposes the erection of a 5 no. bedroom dwelling and the creation of a new
crossover onto the highway and 4 no. off street parking spaces, two within the integral garage and
two on the hardstanding to the front of the dwelling. The Highways Authority were consulted on the
application and have stated that the proposed quantum of parking would be acceptable and having
regard to the provisions of Paragraph 111 of the NPPF, the impacts of the development on highway
safety would not be unacceptable, and when considered cumulatively with other developments, the
impacts on the road network would not be severe and, therefore, the proposal would accord with
the provisions of the NPPF. However, the Highways Authority have requested the imposition of
conditions requiring the closure of any existing vehicular access, the provision of pedestrian and
vehicular visibility splays, and requiring the implementation of the proposed access and parking prior
to occupation the proposed development. Should these conditions be applied it can be considered
acceptable in highways terms and no objections are raised with regard to the provisions of Policy:
34 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan or the provisions of the Leicestershire Highways Design
Guide.

Conclusion

The proposed development would not have a sufficiently severe detrimental impact on the amenity
of neighbouring residents, the character and appearance of the area, the habitat of a protected
species or on highway safety to justify the refusal of planning permission on this occasion and the
proposal would not fail to accord with the provisions of the relevant Development Plan policies and,
therefore, subject to the conditions detailed below the proposal can be considered to represent
sustainable development and thus it is recommended that planning permission be granted on this
occasion.

Implications Statement

| Health | No Significant implications

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 22 ~



Environment No Significant implications

Community Safety No Significant implications
Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property has to be balanced
against the rights of neighbours.
Equal Opportunities No Significant implications
Risk Assessment No Significant implications
Value for Money No Significant implications
Equalities No Significant implications
Legal No Significant implications

Recommendation

For the reasons set out in the above report then Permit subject to the following conditions:

1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: To conform with Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Prior to the commencement of development above slab level details of all materials to be
used externally shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and the development shall only be carried out using the agreed materials.

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the building and its surroundings
and in accordance with the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework,
Policies 6 and 44 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 Part 1 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order, the dwelling hereby permitted shall not be altered or extended
(including any alterations to its roof), no new windows shall be inserted, no hard surfacing
be installed, no chimneys, flue or vent pipes shall be installed, and no buildings or structures
shall be erected within the curtilage of the dwelling unless planning permission has first been
granted by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to prevent the overdevelopment of the plot and to ensure the amenity of
any future occupants of the dwelling and of neighbouring properties and to preserve the
character and appearance of the area. To comply with the provisions of Policies: 6, 37 and
44 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Unless otherwise first approved in writing (by means of a Non-material Amendment/Minor
Material Amendment or a new Planning Permission) by the Local Planning Authority the
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
and particulars listed in the schedule below:

Drawing No: 9685 L.10, Rev: B Entitled: Proposed Location, Block Plan and Site Plan with
Boundary Treatment Dated: June 2022 and received by the Local Planning Authority on the
27/06/2022.

Drawing No: 9685 L.11, Rev: B Entitled: Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations, Dated: Feb
2022 and Received by the Local Planning Authority on the 27/06/2022.

Drawing No:20330-21-01, Entitled: Topographic Site Survey, Dated: 08/01/2021 and
received by the Local Planning Authority on the 23/02/2022.

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal by Wildlife and Ecology Services Dated: 01 June 2022 and
received by the Local Planning Authority on the 28/06/2022.

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 23 ~




10

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted by this permission and in the
interests of proper planning.

The new vehicular accesses hereby permitted shall not be used for a period of more than
one month from being first brought into use unless any existing vehicular accesses on
Highcroft Road that become redundant as a result of this proposal have been closed
permanently and reinstated in accordance with details first submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as vehicular
visibility splays of 2.4 metres by 43 metres have been provided at the site access for Plot 1.
These shall thereafter be permanently maintained with nothing within those splays higher
than 0.6 metres above the level of the adjacent footway/verge/highway.

Reason: To afford adequate visibility at the access to cater for the expected volume of
traffic joining the existing highway network, in the interests of general highway safety, and
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as 1.0 metre
by 1.0 metre pedestrian visibility splays have been provided on the highway boundary on
both sides of the access with nothing within those splays higher than 0.6 metres above the
level of the adjacent footway/verge/highway and, once provided, shall be so maintained in
perpetuity.

Reason In the interests of pedestrian safety and in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as the access
arrangements shown on leaf architecture drawing number L.10 Rev.B have been
implemented in full.

Reason: To ensure that vehicles entering and leaving the site may pass each other clear of
the highway, in a slow and controlled manner, in the interests of general highway safety and
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until such time as the parking
facilities have been implemented in accordance with leaf architecture drawing number L.10
Rev.B. Thereafter the onsite parking provision shall be so maintained in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that adequate off-street parking provision is made to reduce the
possibility of the proposed development leading to on-street parking problems locally in the
interests of highway safety and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to commencement of the development other than demolition; details of treatment of
all parts on the site not covered by buildings shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall be landscaped strictly in accordance with the
approved details in the first planting season after completion or first occupation of the
development, whichever is the sooner. Details shall include:

a) a scaled plan showing vegetation to be retained and trees and plants to be planted.

b) proposed hardstanding treatment.

) a schedule detailing sizes and numbers of all proposed trees/plants.

d) details of replacement hedges to be planted.

e) details of the mitigation measures in strict accordance with the submitted Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal by Wildlife and Ecology Services Dated: 01 June 2022 and received by

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 24 ~



the Local Planning Authority on the 28/06/2022. The submitted details shall include a
timetable for implementation of the measures. For the avoidance of doubt no Badger proof
fencing shall be installed or retained on any part of the site.

Reason: Required to safeguard and enhance the character and amenity of the area, to
provide ecological, environmental and biodiversity benefits and to maximise the quality and
usability of open spaces within the development, and to enhance its setting within the
immediate locality in accordance with Objective 23 of the OWBC Tree Strategy, Policy: 37
and policy: 44 of the Local Plan.

Note(s) to Applicant:

1

You are advised that this proposal may require separate consent under the Building
Regulations and that no works should be undertaken until all necessary consents have been
obtained. Advice on the requirements of the Building Regulations can be obtained from the
Building Control Section.

If the proposal involves the carrying out of building work along or close to the boundary, you
are advised that under the Party Wall Etc. Act 1996 you have a duty to give notice to the
adjoining owner of your intentions before commencing this work.

For the avoidance of doubt this permission does not authorise any development outside the
application site including any foundation, footings, fascias, eaves, soffits, verges or
guttering.

You are advised that any amendments to the approved plans will require either a Non-
Material amendment application, a Minor Material Amendment application or a new planning
application. If this is the case then you should allow at least 8 weeks before the intended
start date to gain approval for such amendments. Further advice can be obtained by
contacting the Planning Section of the Council on any amendments (internal or external).

In dealing with the application, through ongoing negotiation the local planning authority
have worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner based on seeking
solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with the planning application and this has
resulted in the approval of the application. The Local Planning Authority has therefore acted
pro-actively to secure a sustainable form of development in line with the requirements of the
National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38) and in accordance with the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

The applicant is advised that the Council is in the process of adopting a Waste and Recycling
strategy and all developments are expected to incorporate measures for the storage and
collection of waste.

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse permission for the
proposed development or to grant it subject to conditions, then you can appeal to the Secretary of
State under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

If you want to appeal against your local planning authority's decision then you must do so within 6
months of the date of this notice.

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 25 ~



Appeals can be made online at: https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate. If you are unable to
access the online appeal form, please contact the Planning Inspectorate to obtain a paper copy of
the appeal form on tel: 0303 444 5000.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal but will not normally
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay in
giving notice of appeal.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to the Secretary of State that the
local planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed development
or could not have granted it without the conditions they imposed, having regard to the statutory
requirements, to the provisions of any development order and to any directions given under a
development order.

If you intend to submit an appeal that you would like examined by inquiry then you must notify the
Local Planning Authority and Planning Inspectorate (inquiryappeals@planninginspectorate.gov.uk) at
least 10 days before submitting the appeal. Further details are on GOV.UK.

Purchase Notices

If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or
grants it subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably
beneficial use in its existing state nor render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted.

In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council (District Council,
London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London) in whose area the land is
situated. This notice will require the Council to purchase his interest in the land in accordance with
the provisions of Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 26 ~


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

BACKGROUND PAPERS

22/00072/FUL

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022

~ Page 27 ~



~ gz abed ~

This page has intentionally been left blank

Development Control Committee
20 October 2022



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land East of Bideford Close, Wigston) Tree Preservation Order 2022
	Appendix 1 - The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land East of Bideford Close, Wigston) Tree Preservation Order 2022

	6 Report of the Development Control Manager (October 2022)

